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Our Vision

cMG’s vision is to become the leading developer and supplier of dynamic reservoir simulation technologies 
in the world. Through cMG’s ongoing commitment to research and development, we have been working 
with our industry partners to ensure that our software technologies are able to simulate the new oil and 
gas extraction processes being developed.

Our goal is to assist oil and gas companies in maximizing value by providing a cost effective means of 
understanding the complex physics of their reservoirs and how these reservoirs will react to difficult 
hydrocarbon recovery processes.

CMG has over 360 clients in 49 countries.

$ thousands, unless otherwise stated 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

Software licenses revenues 9,471 11,508 13,617 19,056 22,607 38,406

consulting and contract research revenues 2,863 3,656 3,603 4,659 5,386 5,536

Total revenue 12,334 15,164 17,220 23,715 27,993 43,942

Gross profit 8,689 10,477 12,321 17,911 21,208 34,785

Gross profit (%) 70 69 72 76 76 79

Earnings before income and other taxes 3,984 5,203 6,405 10,812 11,863 24,247

income and other taxes 1,401 1,729 2,419 3,855 4,263 7,631

Earnings for the year 2,583 3,474 3,986 6,957 7,600 16,616

Weighted average shares outstanding (000s) 14,951 15,509 15,912 16,369 16,745 17,172

Earnings per share – basic ($) 0.17 0.22 0.25 0.43 0.45 0.97

Trading price per share ($), at March 31 2.35 2.80 3.93 6.65 7.60 9.25



Highlights

R&d Expenditures ($thousands)

CMG has over 360 clients in 49 countries.
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Total revenue 12,334 15,164 17,220 23,715 27,993 43,942

Gross profit 8,689 10,477 12,321 17,911 21,208 34,785

Gross profit (%) 70 69 72 76 76 79

Earnings before income and other taxes 3,984 5,203 6,405 10,812 11,863 24,247

income and other taxes 1,401 1,729 2,419 3,855 4,263 7,631

Earnings for the year 2,583 3,474 3,986 6,957 7,600 16,616

Weighted average shares outstanding (000s) 14,951 15,509 15,912 16,369 16,745 17,172

Earnings per share – basic ($) 0.17 0.22 0.25 0.43 0.45 0.97

Trading price per share ($), at March 31 2.35 2.80 3.93 6.65 7.60 9.25
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OUR SiGNiFicANT AccOMPLiSHMENTS iN THE yEAR WERE:

n  Annuity/maintenance software license revenue reached a 

record level of $25.9 million, up 44 percent from last year.

continuing growth in this area is a fundamental part of cMG’s success, 

and this revenue stream continues to demonstrate a high degree of 

sustainability year over year. Annuity/maintenance software license 

revenue has grown at a compound annual rate of 32 percent since 

2004. 

n  Increased perpetual software license revenue by 172 percent 

over the prior year, to a record $12.5 million.

This unprecedented growth proves that this revenue stream can be more 

irregular than annuity/maintenance revenue, as it is highly dependent 

on the timing of a customer’s decision to purchase software licenses. 

While perpetual software license sales can make our revenue stream 

more “lumpy,” these sales provide a longer term commitment by our 

customers to use our products and most of these customers supplement 

their purchase with annual maintenance licenses to keep the software 

up-to-date.

Kenneth M. Dedeluk
President and Chief Executive Officer

To Our Shareholders

i am once again pleased to report record financial results for 
computer Modelling Group Ltd. For the fiscal year ended March 
31, 2009, we achieved results which surpassed all previous records 
for cMG. i am especially proud of this accomplishment in view of 
the economic downturn which began during our third quarter of 
fiscal 2009.

Notably, in the six categories noted below, we have now set records 
for six consecutive years:
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$ thousands, unless otherwise stated

For the year ended March 31, 2008 2009 change

Annuity/maintenance software licenses $  18,033 $  25,947* 44%

Software license revenue 22,607 38,406* 70%

Total revenue 27,993 43,942* 57%

Gross profit 21,208 34,785* 64%

Earnings 7,600 16,616* 119%

Earnings per share – basic $  0.45 $  0.97* 116%

* Record annual results
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n  Increased quarterly dividends paid during the year by 53 

percent from $0.415 per share to $0.635 per share.

This increase in our dividend is reflective of our continued strong 

financial performance and the commitment to share our success directly 

with our shareholders.

n  Launched a new product, CMOST, in fourth quarter of 

fiscal 2009.

in addition to continued enhancements to our other products, cMG 

released its new product, cMOST, late in fiscal 2009. cMOST assists 

customers with sensitivity analysis, history matching, optimization and 

uncertainty assessment. cMOST provides our customers with a tool to 

help them to more efficiently manage their hydrocarbon asset portfolio 

during these trying economic times. 

n  Continued commitment to research and development.

cMG’s existing product suite is the market leader in the simulation 

of difficult hydrocarbon recovery techniques and we are committed 

to being the leading edge technology supplier in this market place. 

during fiscal 2009, we increased our overall spending on research and 

development by 24 percent and expect a similar increase in fiscal 2010.

n  Continued marketing efforts in traditional market places and 

new regions proved successful.

during the year, cMG increased its presence in the Eastern Hemisphere 

with the opening of a full service office in dubai, U.A.E and the 

relocation of a senior executive to that office. On a geographic basis, 
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cMG Trading History (TSX: cMG)

$ thousands, unless otherwise stated

For the year ended March 31, 2008 2009 change

Annuity/maintenance software licenses $  18,033 $  25,947* 44%

Software license revenue 22,607 38,406* 70%

Total revenue 27,993 43,942* 57%

Gross profit 21,208 34,785* 64%

Earnings 7,600 16,616* 119%

Earnings per share – basic $  0.45 $  0.97* 116%

* Record annual results
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software license sales in cMG’s two most sizeable markets – canada 

and the United States – have continued to increase year over year.  

We are also very pleased with our growing market penetration in the rest 

of the world, where total revenues have grown by 73 percent compared 

to fiscal 2008.

n  Expanded our staff complement to 117 employees worldwide 

by continuing to attract quality professionals.

in order to support the growth in size and scope of cMG’s worldwide 

operations, we have more than doubled our staff levels since 2004. 

during 2009, cMG added 17 highly qualified staff who were attracted to 

cMG because of the opportunity to work with an outstanding team of 

long-term, dedicated individuals who provide a rewarding, stimulating 

work environment. cMG’s greatest strength is its employees.

n  Achieved significant advancement in the development of the 

DRMS project.

cMG’s joint project to develop the newest generation of dynamic 

reservoir modelling system progressed during the year. The majority 

of the software architecture and high-level design issues were resolved 

and the framework code is now in place. The 32 member dRMS team of 

cMG employees and partner-seconded staff continue to work diligently 

towards the target of a first commercial release of the software late 

in 2010.

As the world’s hydrocarbon production by conventional means declines, 

oil and gas companies must employ more complex and costly recovery 

methods, under increasingly strict regulations. Added to an environment 

of low commodity prices and credit constraints, it is more important than 

ever for petroleum producers to increase the cost-effectiveness and overall 

efficiency of their operations. cMG’s products focus on advanced-process 

simulation and employ leading edge technologies to help these companies 

to get the most out of every dollar spent. Our loyal and diverse customer 

base (over 360 customers in 49 countries) further helps to provide stability to 

our software license revenues.

i am excited about the launch of our new product, cMOST, and by the 

progress we are making on our dRMS project. Our commitment to ongoing 

research and product development will secure cMG a principal role as a 

supplier of reservoir simulation technologies to the petroleum industry into 

the future.
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Years of Service

Professional Designations
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cMG’s history of strong financial results has allowed us to pay regular 

quarterly dividends to our shareholders since March 2004. Given our 

exceptional performance this year, cMG’s Board of directors has declared 

a special dividend of $0.22 per share in addition to an increased quarterly 

dividend of $0.18 per share, to be paid on June 15, 2009.

in closing, i wish to thank cMG’s executives and employees 

for their tremendous work and dedication during fiscal 

2009 and for their commitment going forward. Our Board of 

directors has also been crucial in supporting our goals. With 

this incredible group of people, i believe that we have the 

skills, technology and tools to build on cMG’s success and 

deliver continued returns for our shareholders.

Kenneth M. dedeluk

President and chief Executive Officer

May 21, 2009
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A History of Continuous Innovation

Since cMG’s inception, we have been at the leading edge of these 

technological developments, working alongside the petroleum 

industry in the area of reservoir engineering science. Our genesis, 32 

years ago, was building a reservoir simulator for thermal heavy oil 

recovery processes that were more theory than practical application. 

Today, our simulator STARS is used in virtually all major heavy oil 

producing areas in the world.

cMG will continue on this path of innovation, striving to continuously 

add the ability to simulate experimental and newly commercialized 

recovery methods for the hydrocarbon resources of today and 

tomorrow. Over the past six years, cMG has increased its spending on 

research and development at a compound annual rate of 25 percent.

There have been significant changes in the petroleum industry over the last 30 plus years. conventional 
petroleum production has been in decline in most areas of the world and non-conventional sources 
and advanced recovery processes have gained prominence. The petroleum industry has had to develop 
new methods and technologies to increase recoveries from existing conventional reservoirs and to tap 
the potential of unconventional reservoirs.

Clockwise, from left:  Long Nghiem, Vice President, Research & Development; John Kalman, Vice President, Finance & CFO; Kenneth Dedeluk, President & 
CEO; Jim Erdle, Vice President, USA & Latin America; Allan Hiebert, Vice President, DRMS Development; Ronald Kutney, Vice President, Eastern Hemisphere; 
Daniel Dexter, Vice President, Canada & Marketing.
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CMOST: Computer Assisted History Matching, Optimization, 
and Uncertainty Assessment Tool

cMOST is the latest product offering in the cMG software suite. 

it is a state-of-the-art reservoir engineering optimization tool, 

employing innovative experimental design techniques to 

efficiently determine the reservoir parameters which define 

the production and ultimate recovery of oil and gas fields.

cMG’s mission has consistently been to develop the most personnel-friendly 

and hardware-efficient software to improve the manner in which oil and gas 

companies recover hydrocarbons from every asset. The first 

step in the process is creating the base-case reservoir model 

in cMG’s Builder application. From this base model, cMOST 

automatically generates and runs scenarios for every possible 

combination of values for each specified range of reservoir 

properties. This is the fastest technique for an accurate history 

match and a reliable production forecast.

cMOST improves the effectiveness of each reservoir engineer 

by eliminating the tedious labor of individual case generation 

for hundreds of scenarios. it allows them to focus on the high-

value interpretation and evaluation of results. The power of 

cMOST lies in modern experimental design algorithms which 

vary multiple parameters simultaneously to find the optimal solution – something 

a human cannot do. When run on a cluster of computers, cMOST dispatches and 

interprets the results of numerous runs, terminates non-physical solutions and 

narrows the search space rapidly to reach not just local maximums or minimums, 

but the ultimate best case. Solutions to reservoir models with trillions of possible 

combinations and permutations can often be found in fewer than 1000 runs. in 

this fashion, cMOST helps engineers to create more accurate models in a shorter 

period of time and allows asset managers to have a greater degree of confidence 

in the forecasts, multiplying the team’s effectiveness many fold.

CMG’s Software Suite

n CMOST – History Matching and Optimization Tool 

n STARS – 4 Phase Advanced Thermal Simulator

n GEM – Equation of State Compositional Simulator

n IMEX – 3 Phase Black Oil/Condensate Simulator

n Builder – 2D & 3D Graphical Simulation Model Builder

n WinProp – PVT Fluid Property Modelling

n Results – 3D & 4D Results Visualization & Animation Tool
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STARS: Steam, Thermal and Advanced processes  
Reservoir Simulator

STARS is the industry standard for thermal, K-value 

compositional, chemical reaction and coupled geomechanical 

reservoir simulation. STARS is ideally suited for advanced 

modelling of recovery processes involving the injection of 

steam, solvents, air and chemicals.

STARS is equipped with robust reaction kinetics and geomechanics capabilities 

to make it the most complete and flexible reservoir simulator 

available for modelling the complex oil and gas recovery 

processes being studied and implemented, today and in the 

future. innovative processes such as insitu-combustion for 

heavy oils are developed, evaluated and optimized using 

STARS. Tools for the modelling of complex wellbores, micro-

emulsions, electrical heating and sand transportation round 

out some of the features of the most powerful simulator for 

advanced processes currently available.

GEM: Generalized Equation-of State Model  
Reservoir Simulator

GEM is a full EoS compositional reservoir simulator with 

advanced features for modelling recovery processes where the 

fluid composition affects recovery. GEM can be used during 

field development planning to reduce the risk of asphaltene 

precipitation, optimize the production of coal bed methane 

(“cBM”) deposits and reduce risk in acid gas and cO2 sequestration projects.

GEM provides reservoir simulation capabilities that go beyond 

the abilities of conventional black oil and K-value compositional 

simulators, including the effects of asphaltene precipitation 

and plugging during water, methane or cO2 injection. it is 

the industry’s leading cBM simulator, providing accurate 

early-time water and methane production predictions as well 

as multi-component production predictions for enhanced 

cBM (“EcBM”) recovery. The EcBM features include extended 

Langmuir isotherms to model the preferential adsorption 

of cO2 and other gases and models for coal shrinkage and 

swelling. Additional extensive capabilities for representing 

geochemical reactions and geomechanical effects during 

cO2 sequestration make GEM the most robust compositional 

simulator available today.
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IMEX: Implicit-Explicit Black Oil Simulator

iMEX is a full-featured three-phase, four-

component black oil reservoir simulator for 

modelling primary depletion and secondary 

recovery processes in conventional oil and 

gas reservoirs. iMEX also models pseudo-

miscible and polymer injection in conventional oil reservoirs 

and primary depletion of gas condensate reservoirs, as 

well as the behaviour of naturally or hydraulically fractured 

reservoirs.

iMEX provides the capabilities and features required for small to massive (100+ 

million grid block) simulations for screening prospects, setting up pilot designs, 

monitoring and optimizing field operations and complex full-field reservoir 

studies, all with the objective of improving production rates, ultimate recovery 

and value. The coupling of iMEX to surface pipeline network simulators provides 

a very effective solution for optimizing production from multi-field offshore 

developments or from large gas fields in which surface flowline constraints can 

affect reservoir performance and project economics.

Builder: Pre-Processing Applications

Builder is an application used in the preparation 

of reservoir simulation models. it represents 

the standard in model preparation, reducing 

time, cost and the frustration of conventional 

model-building methods. 

developed by cMG’s industry-leading team of scientists, 

engineers and programmers, Builder was conceived in response 

to requests from engineers and managers around the world. 

Whether used alone or in combination with other static models, 

the Builder application helps to quickly build a reservoir 

simulation model.

Builder provides a Windows™ interface which organizes data the way an engineer 

sees it, with logical workflow unconstrained by old-style simulator keywords. For 

new engineers, Builder can be an invaluable training tool, guiding them through 

the process of preparing a simulation model and enabling them to concentrate 

on the reservoir recovery process. Builder makes the design and preparation of 

reservoir models faster and more efficient than ever before by helping engineers 

navigate the often complex processes involved in preparing a model.

As a result, Builder – in conjunction with cMG’s line of reservoir simulators – 

makes simulation technologies more accessible to all organizations. 
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WINPROP: Phase-Behaviour and Fluid Property Program

WinProp is a Microsoft Windows™ based software application 

designed for modelling the phase behaviour and properties 

of reservoir fluids. This comprehensive Equation-of-State 

(“EoS”) engineering tool assists engineers in understanding 

the distribution of properties within their reservoir fluid system 

under various depletion scenarios and the interaction with injected fluids, from 

small scale lab experimentation to large scale field effects. The information 

uncovered can then be directly imported into cMG’s reservoir simulators for a 

more precise understanding of the reservoir exploitation process.

WinProp can be used to accurately characterize reservoir fluid systems through 

PVT matching, in laboratory experiments, miscibility studies and for the 

prediction of waxing and asphaltene deposition in the reservoir and in surface 

separation facilities. This information provides petroleum engineers with a 

better understanding of the fluid interactions that impact production as they 

develop the reservoir.

Results: Post-Processing Applications

Results is a Windows™ based program that 

is used to evaluate the output for each of 

cMG’s simulation products. it provides easy 

visualization of the results of the simulator 

calculations.

With Results, one can visualize input data 

and output model results in a variety of 

graphs, tabular reports, 2d aerial map views, 

2d cross section views, 3d perspective views 

and 3d stereographic views.

Simulation output can be animated with time to highlight 

important recovery processes and observe trends within the 

reservoir. displayed images can also be translated into bitmaps, JPEG files, or AVi 

movies and imported into the most popular presentation and word processing 

software applications.

10

c
O

M
PU

TE
R 

M
O

d
EL

Li
N

G
 G

RO
U

P

The CMG Suite:  A dynamic reservoir simulation based on a detailed geologic model is a cost-effective 

engineering and management tool which improves recovery from developed and undeveloped oil, gas and 

geothermal reserves. Properly built reservoir simulations help make the most of exploration and production 

investments.



Management’s Discussion and Analysis

This Management’s Discussion and Analysis (“MD&A”) for Computer Modelling Group Ltd. (“CMG,” the “Company,” “we” 

or “our”), presented as at May 21, 2009, should be read with the audited consolidated financial statements and related 

notes of the Company for the years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008. Readers should also read the “Forward Looking 

Information” advisory contained at the end of this MD&A. Additional information relating to CMG, including our 

Annual Information Form, can be found at www.sedar.com.  The financial data contained herein have been prepared 

in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (“GAAP”), and unless otherwise indicated, all 

amounts in this report are expressed in Canadian dollars.

Vision, Business and Strategy
cMG’s vision is to become the leading developer and supplier of dynamic reservoir modelling systems in the 

world. Early in its life cMG made the strategic decision to focus its research and development efforts on providing 

solutions for the simulation of difficult hydrocarbon recovery techniques, a decision that created the foundation 

to cMG’s dominant market presence today in the simulation of advanced hydrocarbon recovery processes. cMG 

has continued this commitment by increasing spending on research and development and working closely with its 

customers to develop simulation tools relevant to the challenges they face today.  This includes the dRMS project, 

a collaborative effort with our partners Shell international Exploration and Production BV (“Shell”) and Petroleo 

Brasileiro S.A. (“Petrobras”) to jointly develop the newest generation of reservoir simulation software. Our target is 

to develop a dynamic system that does more than optimize reservoir recovery; it will model the entire hydrocarbon 

reservoir system, including production modelling systems. 

From day one of its inception over thirty years ago, cMG has remained focused on assisting our customers to unlock 

the value of their hydrocarbon reservoirs. With petroleum production using conventional methods on the decline, 

the petroleum industry must use more difficult and costly advanced process extraction methods, while being 

faced with more governmental and regulatory requirements related to environmental concerns. cMG’s success 

can, in turn, be correlated to the oil industry becoming more reliant on the use of simulation technology due to 

the maturity of conventional petroleum reservoirs and the complexities of both current and emerging production 

processes.

cMG’s success can specifically be attributed to a number of factors: advanced physics, ongoing enhancements to 

the company’s already robust product line, improved computational speed, parallel computing ability, ease of use 

capabilities of the pre- and post-processor applications, cost effectiveness of the cMG solution for customers and 

the knowledge base of cMG personnel to support and advance its software. 

cMG currently provides reservoir simulation software licenses to over 360 oil companies, consulting firms and 

research institutions in 49 countries. in combination with its principal business of selling software licenses, cMG 

also performs consulting services and funded research for its clients. While the generation of consulting service 

revenue is not regarded as a core part of cMG’s financial strategy, offering this type of service is important to cMG 

operationally. cMG performs a limited amount of specialized consulting services, which are typically of a highly 

complex and/or experimental nature. These studies provide hands-on practical knowledge, allowing cMG staff to 

test the boundaries of our software, and provide us the opportunity to increase software license sales to both new 

and existing clients. The funded research revenues represent both situations whereby clients partner with cMG to 

assist in the development, testing and refinement of new simulation technologies and research grants provided 

by cMG Reservoir Simulation Foundation (the “Foundation”), the sole holder of cMG’s Non-Voting Shares, in the 

Foundation’s support of research activities in the advancement of reservoir simulation technology.
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cMG remains true to its strategy of growing its revenue base while advancing its technological superiority over its 

competition. cMG firmly believes that, to become the dominant supplier of dynamic reservoir modelling systems 

in the world, it must be responsive to clients’ needs today and accurately predict their needs in the future. 

cMG invests a significant amount of resources each year towards maintaining its technological superiority. during 

fiscal 2009, cMG increased its overall spending on research and development by 24 percent and expects a similar 

increase in fiscal 2010.  The increasing level of investment by cMG in its current product suite offering helps to 

ensure that its existing proven technology continues to be industry-leading. These significant levels of investment, 

in combination with partnering with Shell and Petrobras in the dRMS project to jointly develop the newest 

generation of reservoir simulation software, are targeted strategies to achieve our vision to become the leading 

developer and supplier of dynamic reservoir modelling systems in the world.

Overall Performance

KEy PERFORMANcE dRiVERS ANd cAPABiLiT y TO dELiVER RESULTS

One of the challenges the petroleum industry faces in trying to overcome barriers to keep production growing is 

the continuing need for breakthrough technologies. The facts facing the petroleum industry today are that brand 

new fields are increasingly difficult to find, especially on a large scale, and that there are a large number of mature 

fields and unconventional prospects where known petroleum reserves exist, the question is how to economically 

extract the petroleum reserves in place while utilizing environmentally conscious processes.  These challenges 

have been made even more formidable given the current environment of low commodity prices, credit constraints 

and general economic uncertainty.

The petroleum industry utilizes reservoir simulation to provide both vital information and a visual interpretation 

on how reservoirs will behave under various recovery techniques. Understanding the science of how a petroleum 

reservoir will react to difficult hydrocarbon recovery processes through simulation prior to spending capital on 

drilling wells and injecting expensive chemicals and steam, for instance, is far less costly and risky than trying the 

various techniques on real wells.

cMG’s existing product suite of software is the market leader in the simulation of difficult hydrocarbon recovery 

techniques. To maintain this dominant market position, cMG actively participates in research consortia that 

experiment with new petroleum extraction processes and technologies, incorporates the simulation of new 

recovery methods into its product suite and focuses on overcoming existing technological barriers to advance 

speed and ease of use, amongst other benefits, of its software. 

cMG recently launched cMOST, our newest product that will enhance our existing suite of software offerings. This 

new addition will allow our customers to perform stochastic simulation and risk evaluation of uncertain reservoir 

parameters coupled with capital investments. it focuses on assessing the implications of variability of reservoir 

properties such as porosity, permeability and major business decision parameters such as optimum well locations. 

in summary, this new product allows our customers to more effectively understand their reservoir assets and, in 

turn, optimize their production and capital expenditures to yield the highest net present value.  While this has 

always been key to any investment decision made by our customers, given the current economic climate it has 

taken on a heightened importance.

We expect cMG’s market share of all petroleum recovery simulation to increase as the amount of easy-to-extract 

oil declines and as production from unconventional sources increases. The speed and the magnitude of growth in 

licenses sold in cMG’s advanced recovery process simulators is driven by the shift in production from conventional 

means to more complex recovery methods.
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cMG is in a very strong financial position with $26.5 million in working capital, no bank debt and a long history of 

generating earnings and cash from operating activities. in addition to its financial resources, cMG’s real strength 

lies in the outstanding quality and dedication of its employees in all areas of the company. it has never been 

easy to find qualified staff as cMG has grown through the years. in the past couple of years, cMG has had to deal 

with unprecedented competitive pressures in the labour force. despite these challenges, cMG added 17 new staff 

members to its employee complement in fiscal 2009 and is planning for a potential increase in its staff complement 

by a similar amount by the end of fiscal 2010, depending upon prevailing business opportunities.

The development of our dRMS system, the newest generation reservoir simulation software system, is a significant 

project for cMG and its partners; a project that we estimate will represent over 125 man-years of development. The 

dRMS team has grown to 32 persons consisting of 25 cMG employees and seven partner-seconded staff members. 

cMG, through its participation in this joint project, will have full commercialization rights to the developed 

technology and currently targets the first commercial release version in late 2010. 

cMG’s financial commitment to the dRMS joint project approximates $10.6 million for its 37 percent of the aggregate 

project costs and the Foundation agreed, subject to certain termination rights, to fund up to a maximum of $5.2 

million to cover 50 percent of cMG’s estimated share of the aggregate project costs. As project operator, cMG 

receives a fee for operator services, which is reflected in contract research revenues and goes to offset the cost of 

services that cMG provides in addition to direct project expenditures.

Annual Performance

$ thousands, unless otherwise stated March 31, 2007 March 31, 2008 March 31, 2009

Annuity/maintenance licenses 12,794 18,033 25,947

Perpetual licenses 6,262 4,574 12,459

Software licenses 19,056 22,607 38,406

consulting and contract research 4,659 5,386 5,536

Revenues 23,715 27,993 43,942

Gross profit 17,911 21,208 34,785

Gross profit (%) 76 76 79

Earnings for the year 6,957 7,600 16,616

cash dividends declared and paid 4,345 6,952 10,926

Total assets 30,414 33,339 48,044

Total shares outstanding 16,558 16,866 17,260

Trading price per share, at March 31 6.65 7.60 9.25

Market capitalization at March 31 110,109 128,181 159,651

Per share amounts – $

Earnings per share – basic 0.43 0.45 0.97

Earnings per share – diluted 0.42 0.44 0.95

cash dividends declared per common Share 0.27 0.42 0.64

RESULTS OF OPERATiONS – ANNUAL

cMG achieved another record year with revenues and profits for its fiscal year ended March 31, 2009 exceeding all 

previous results. For the year ended March 31, 2009, cMG reported revenues of $43.9 million, up 57 percent over the 

prior year revenues of $28.0 million, and net earnings of $16.6 million ($0.97 per share), an increase of 118 percent 

over the $7.6 million ($0.45 per share) recorded for the year ended March 31, 2008. 
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REVENUES

cMG’s revenues are comprised of software license sales, 

which provide the majority of the company’s revenues, 

and consulting and contract research fees. cMG’s revenues 

of $43.9 million for its 2009 fiscal year reflect an increase of 

$15.9 million, a 57 percent increase from the $28.0 million 

recorded in its 2008 fiscal year. This growth is due to increased 

software license sales in both the annuity/maintenance and 

perpetual revenue streams.

SOFT WARE LicENSES

cMG generated another record year in its software license 

sales, with $38.4 million in software license revenues 

recorded in the year ended March 31, 2009. This reflects a 

growth rate of 70 percent from prior year software license 

revenues of $22.6 million.

cMG’s software license revenues can be categorized between annuity/maintenance software licensing, which is 

generally for a term of one year or less, and perpetual software licensing, whereby the customer purchases the 

then current version of the software and has the right to use that version in perpetuity. cMG has found that a large 

percentage of its customers who have acquired perpetual software licenses subsequently purchase maintenance 

licenses to ensure they have access to current versions of cMG software. 

cMG’s annuity/maintenance licensing for the year ended March 31, 2009 was $25.9 million, representing 68 percent 

of fiscal 2009 total software license revenues. This reflects an increase of 44 percent from the $18.0 million (80 

percent of fiscal 2008 total software license revenues) in annuity/maintenance software license revenues generated 

last year. 

Software license revenues under perpetual sales for the year ended March 31, 2009 were $12.5 million, up $7.9 

million from the $4.6 million recorded in fiscal 2008. Software licensing under perpetual sales is a significant part of 

cMG’s business but is more variable and unpredictable in nature as the purchase decision and its timing fluctuates 

with clients’ needs and budgets. This unprecedented growth in the sales of perpetual licenses was twice the 

previous record.

The growth in cMG’s software license revenues in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2008 is equally attributable to the 

sales of perpetual and annuity/maintenance licenses to new customers and additional licenses and/or additional 

products sold to existing customers. The growing utilization by the oil and gas industry of enhanced recovery 

processes and production from unconventional sources of hydrocarbons have generated increased demand for 

cMG’s advanced physics reservoir simulators. in addition, demand for cMG’s parallel computing option to enable 

clients to run large highly complex models with reduced computational time has grown.

On a geographic basis, software license sales to cMG’s two most sizeable markets, canada and the United States, 

continued to demonstrate strong revenue growth of 77 percent and 37 percent respectively. The company’s 

software license revenue in the rest of the world increased by 80 percent as cMG continues to increase its market 

presence throughout the world.

cMG has historically maintained a significant percentage of repeat customers and expects that this will continue. 

At March 31, 2009, cMG has pre-sold $11.4 million (2008 – $8.6 million) of annuity/maintenance software license 

revenue, the majority of which relates to its next fiscal year ending March 31, 2010.
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cONSULTiNG ANd cONTRAc T RESEARcH REVENUES

cMG recorded consulting and contract research revenues of $5.5 million for the year ended March 31, 2009, up $0.1 

million from the $5.4 million recorded for the same period last year. 

cMG performs consulting and contract research activities on an ongoing basis but such activities are not considered 

to be a core part of our business and are primarily undertaken to increase our knowledge base and hence expand 

the technological abilities of our simulators in a funded manner, combined with servicing our customers’ needs. 

in addition, these activities are undertaken to market the capabilities of our suite of software products with the 

ultimate objective to increase software license sales. Our experience is that consulting activities are variable in 

nature as both the timing and dollar magnitude of work are dependent on activities and budgets within client 

companies.

At March 31, 2009, cMG has recorded approximately $0.4 million (2008 - $0.2 million) of pre-sold revenue relating 

to consulting and contract research revenues.

EXPENSES

cMG realized a gross profit of $34.8 million (79 percent) for the year ended March 31, 2009, up $13.6 million from 

the $21.2 million (76 percent) recorded last year. This increase in gross profit resulted from growth in our software 

license revenues.

cMG’s total expenses, excluding depreciation and income and other taxes, amounted to $20.7 million for the year 

ended March 31, 2009, up $4.8 million or 30 percent from the $15.9 million expended last year. 

This increase in total expenses between the two years is primarily due to growth in cMG’s staff base; performance-

based compensation plans; and increased use of professional advisors in both the legal and taxation areas due to 

our growing international customer base. Offsetting these increased expenditures has been a reduction in our 

third party contract costs and greater benefits recorded in respect of the scientific research and experimental 

development investment tax credit program. The financial results for the year ended March 31, 2009 include $0.2 

million in scientific research and experimental development investment tax credits pertaining to expenditures on 

our dRMS project for cMG’s fiscal years ended March 31, 2007 and 2008.

As a technology company, cMG’s largest area of expenditure is its people. Approximately $15.7 million or 76 percent 

of the total expenses in the year ended March 31, 2009 relate to staff costs. This compares to $12.0 million or 75 
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percent of the total expenses in the comparative period last year. during the year ended March 31, 2009, our staff 

complement grew by 17 employees and cMG could potentially add a similar number by the end of fiscal 2010, 

depending upon prevailing business opportunities. 

iNVESTMENT iN RESEARcH ANd dEVELOPMENT

cMG maintains its belief that its strategy of growing long-term value for shareholders can only be achieved 

through continued investment in research and development. Along with its leadership position in the simulation 

of proven advanced recovery processes, cMG has positioned itself to play an important role in experimenting with 

new petroleum extraction processes and technology. cMG works closely with its customers to provide solutions 

to complex problems. 

during the year ended March 31, 2009, cMG recorded an investment of $8.0 million (2008 – $6.4 million) in 

research and development, which includes its share of the research and development costs on the dRMS system 

development, all of which is expensed to earnings. cMG has recorded a reduction of $1.0 million (2008 – $0.3 

million) in the year ended March 31, 2009 to its product research and development expenses for investment tax 

credits on scientific research and experimental development expenditures. The benefit of the scientific research 

and experimental development investment tax credits is utilized by cMG to reduce its canadian federal income 

taxes otherwise payable.

iNTEREST iNcOME ANd FOREiGN EXcHANGE

interest income decreased to $0.6 million in the year ended March 31, 2009 from the $0.8 million recorded last year 

due to lower prevailing interest rates, despite investing larger cash balances.

cMG is impacted by the movement of the US dollar against the canadian dollar as approximately 68 percent (2008 

– 67 percent) of cMG’s revenues for the year ended March 31, 2009 are denominated in US dollars, whereas only 

approximately 18 to 20 percent of cMG’s total costs are denominated in US dollars.

cdN$ to US$ At March 31 yearly average

2007 0.8674 0.8800

2008 0.9729 0.9652

2009 0.7935 0.8966

Given the significant portion of our business that is conducted in US dollars, the weakening of the canadian dollar 

against the US dollar in the later half of fiscal 2009 has positively impacted our financial results in both the valuation 

of our US dollar net working capital position and current period sales. 

cMG recorded a foreign exchange gain of $1.2 million for the year ended March 31, 2009 compared to $0.4 million 

loss recorded last year.

iNcOME ANd OTHER TAXES

cMG’s effective tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2009 is reflected as 31.5 percent (2008 – 35.9 percent), whereas 

the prevailing canadian statutory tax rate is now 29.38 percent. This is primarily due to a combination of the non-

tax deductibility of stock-based compensation expense and the benefit of foreign withholding taxes only being 

realized as a tax deduction as opposed to a tax credit.

The benefit recorded in cMG’s books on the federal scientific research and experimental development investment 

tax credit program impacts future income taxes. The investment tax credit earned in the current fiscal year is 

utilized by cMG to reduce federal income taxes otherwise payable for the current fiscal year and this benefit bears 

an inherent tax liability as the amount of the credit is included in the subsequent year’s taxable income for both 

federal and provincial purposes. The inherent tax liability on these investment tax credits is reflected in the year 
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the credit is earned as a current future income tax liability and then, in the following fiscal year, is transferred to 

income taxes payable. 

Quarterly Performance
Fiscal 2008 Fiscal 2009

$ thousands, unless otherwise stated Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4 Q1 Q2 Q3 Q4

Annuity/maintenance licenses 3,954 4,042 4,450 5,587† 5,618* 5,350 6,937‡  8,042§

Perpetual licenses 213 682 1,449 2,230 1,171 2,882 3,383 5,023

Software licenses 4,167 4,724 5,899 7,817 6,789 8,232 10,320 13,065

consulting and contract research 1,387 1,376 1,441 1,181 1,479 1,353 1,340 1,364

Revenues 5,554 6,100 7,340 8,998 8,268 9,585 11,660 14,429

Gross Profit 3,918 4,458 5,640 7,192 6,314 7,157 9,525 11,789

Gross Profit (%) 71 73 77 80 76 75 82 82

Earnings before income and other taxes 1,660 2,247 3,291 4,665 3,814 4,414 7,254 8,765

income and other taxes 622 804 1,180 1,657 1,187 1,446 2,350 2,648

Earnings for the quarter 1,038 1,443 2,111 3,008 2,627 2,968 4,904 6,117

cash dividends declared and paid 2,745 1,264 1,260 1,684 3,843 2,073 2,422 2,588

Per share amounts – $

Earnings per share – basic & diluted 0.06 0.09 0.13 0.18 0.15 0.17 0.28 0.35

cash dividends declared per share 0.165 0.075 0.075 0.10 0.225 0.12 0.14 0.15

† includes $0.8 million in revenue that pertains to usage of cMG’s products in prior quarters 

* includes $0.7 million in revenue that pertains to usage of cMG’s products in prior quarters 

‡ includes $0.7 million in revenue that pertains to usage of cMG’s products in prior quarters 

§ includes $1.1 million in revenue that pertains to usage of cMG’s products in prior quarters 

RESULTS OF OPERATiONS – FOURTH QUARTER

cMG reported revenues of $14.4 million and earnings of $6.1 million ($0.35 per share) for the three months ended 

March 31, 2009, up from revenues of $9.0 million and earnings of $3.0 million ($0.18 per share) for the comparable 

period last year.
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products in prior quarters.
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REVENUES 

Software license revenues were $13.1 million in the three months ended March 31, 2009 compared to $7.8 million 

recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. Growth in software license revenues comes as a result of both increased 

sales to existing customers and sales to new customers.

it should be noted that during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009, cMG completed the negotiation of certain annuity/

maintenance contracts and/or fulfilled revenue recognition requirements that included usage of cMG’s products 

in prior quarters. As a result, cMG recognized $1.1 million in revenue in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 that 

pertained to usage of cMG’s products in prior quarters. While these situations regularly occur, the dollar magnitude 

of the resolution of the contracts that impacted our fourth quarter of fiscal 2009 was significant to the quarterly 

comparatives of our annuity/maintenance revenue stream.

consulting and contract research revenues were $1.4 million in the three months ended March 31, 2009 compared 

to $1.2 million recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. 

EXPENSES

cMG realized a gross profit of $11.8 million in the three months ended March 31, 2009, up $4.6 million from the $7.2 

million recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008.

cMG’s total expenses, excluding depreciation and income and other taxes, amounted to $6.0 million for the fourth 

quarter ended March 31, 2009, up $1.6 million from the $4.4 million recorded in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2008. This 

increase in total expenses is primarily due to higher staff costs as a result of staff additions, variable compensation 

that is dependent on growth in cMG’s revenue base and earnings and stock-based compensation expense.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

OPERATiNG Ac TiViTiES

cMG generated $21.6 million from operating activities in the year ended March 31, 2009, an increase of $11.5 

million from the $10.1 million generated in the year ended March 31, 2008. The changes in cMG’s non-cash working 

capital for the year ended March 31, 2009 are reflective of the growth in operations and the timing of customer 

purchases. 

FiNANciNG Ac TiViTiES

during the year ended March 31, 2009, cMG employees and directors exercised options to purchase 468,726 

common Shares, which resulted in $1.7 million in cash proceeds.

Effective on the close of business on August 1, 2008, cMG’s common and Non-Voting Shares were split on a two-for-

one basis. Accordingly, all comparative number of shares and per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted 

to reflect the two-for-one split.

in the year ended March 31, 2009, cMG paid $11.0 million in dividends, representing four quarterly dividends of 

$0.10, $0.12, $0.14 and $0.15 respectively per share and a special dividend of $0.125 per share.  On May 21, 2009, 

cMG announced the payment of a quarterly dividend of $0.18 per share and a special dividend of $0.22 per share 

on cMG’s common and Non-Voting Shares. The dividend will be paid on June 15, 2009 to shareholders of record at 

the close of business on June 5, 2009. 

On February 27, 2009, the company announced a Normal course issuer Bid (“NciB”) commencing March 3, 2009 to 

purchase for cancellation up to 1,114,791 of its common Shares. No shares have been purchased pursuant to this 

NciB through March 31, 2009. 
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On February 26, 2008, the company announced a NciB commencing February 28, 2008 to purchase for cancellation 

up to 970,000 of its common Shares. This NciB ended on February 27, 2009 and a total of 75,120 shares were 

repurchased at market price for a total cost of $598,564. 

On december 14, 2006, the company announced a NciB commencing december 20, 2006 to purchase for 

cancellation up to 670,000 of its common Shares. This NciB ended on december 19, 2007 and a total of 164,800 

common Shares were repurchased at market price for a total cost of $1,187,686

iNVESTiNG AcTiViTiES

cMG’s current needs for capital asset investment relate equally to computer equipment and office infrastructure 

costs. during fiscal 2009, cMG expended $0.6 million on property and equipment additions and has a capital 

budget of $2.2 million for fiscal 2010, all of which will be funded internally. 

LiQUidiT y ANd cAPiTAL RESOURcES

At March 31, 2009, cMG has $34.7 million in cash, no debt and has access to a $1.0 million line of credit with its 

principal banker.

during the year ended March 31, 2009, 3,359,904 shares of cMG’s public float were traded on the TSX Stock 

Exchange. cMG’s share prices ranged from $5.71 to $11.75 per share and last traded on March 31, 2009 at $9.25 for 

a March 31, 2009 market capitalization of $159.7 million.

cOMMiTMENTS, OFF BALANcE SHEET iTEMS ANd TRANSAc TiONS WiTH RELATEd PARTiES 

cMG committed approximately $10.6 million to the five year dRMS research and development project with its 

industry partners Shell and Petrobras, of which $4.8 million has been incurred from inception to March 31, 2009.

in conjunction with entering into this project, the Foundation agreed, subject to certain termination rights, to 

provide up to a maximum of $5.2 million in research grant funding to cover 50 percent of the company’s estimated 

share of project costs over the duration of the project. during the year ended March 31, 2009, cMG has reflected 

$1.0 million (2008 – $0.9 million) in research grants from the Foundation in revenue with respect to this project. 

From commencement of the project to March 31, 2009, these research grants aggregate to $2.4 million.

cMG plans to fund its share of the project costs associated with the development of the newest generation reservoir 

simulation software system from internal cash and funding from the Foundation.

cMG has very little in the way of other ongoing material contractual obligations other than for pre-sold revenues 

which are reflected as deferred revenue on its balance sheet. contractual obligations for office leases are not 

considered to be significant and are estimated as follows: 2010 – $0.7 million; 2011 through 2014 – $0.1 million. cMG 

is currently in discussions regarding new office leases for its canadian-based operations as the current leases expire 

during fiscal 2010. 

Critical Accounting Estimates
The preparation of financial statements requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the 

financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting periods. By their 

nature, these estimates are subject to measurement uncertainty. The effect on the financial statements of changes 

in such estimates in future periods could be material and would be accounted for in the period a change occurs. 

Revenue consists primarily of software license fees and consulting and contract research fees. We recognize revenue 

in accordance with the current rules of canadian GAAP. We follow specific and detailed guidelines in measuring 

revenue; however, certain judgments affect the application of our revenue recognition policies.
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Software license revenue is comprised of annuity/maintenance license fees charged for the use of our software 

products which is generally for a term of one year or less, and perpetual software licensing, whereby the customer 

purchases the then current version of the software and has the right to use that version in perpetuity. We recognize 

software license revenue when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the product has been delivered, the 

fee is fixed or determinable, and collection of the resulting receivable is probable. in cases where collectability is 

not deemed probable, revenue is recognized upon receipt of cash, assuming all other criteria have been met.

Annuity/maintenance revenue is deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related license 

period, which is generally one year or less. License fees for perpetual licenses are recognized fully in revenue when 

all recognition conditions are satisfied.

consulting and contract research revenues are recorded on a percentage-completion basis whereby revenues 

and costs are recorded in operations based on work completed. Recognized revenues and profits are subject to 

revisions as the contract progresses to completion. Revisions in profit estimates are charged to earnings in the 

period in which the facts that give rise to the revision become known.

Other significant accounting estimates deal with the accrual of expenses to the appropriate reporting period, 

stock-based compensation and the measurement of the company’s income and other tax liabilities and assets, 

including the eligibility of expenditures for the scientific research and experimental development investment tax 

credit. All tax filings and compliance with tax regulations are subject to audit and reassessment, potentially several 

years after the initial filing.

Changes in Accounting Policies

cAPiTAL diScLOSURES

Effective April 1, 2008, cMG adopted the recommendations included in the canadian institute of chartered 

Accountants (“cicA”) Handbook, Section 1535, Capital Disclosures. The new standard requires disclosure of 

qualitative and quantitative information that enables users of financial statements to evaluate the company’s 

objectives, policies and processes for managing capital. The adoption of this standard did not have a material 

impact on the company’s financial statements. 

FiNANciAL iNSTRUMENTS

On April 1, 2008, cMG adopted cicA Handbook Section 3862, Financial Instruments – Disclosures and Section 3863, 

Financial Instruments – Presentation. Section 3862 requires disclosure about the significance of financial instruments 

for an entity’s financial position, the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which the entity 

is exposed and how the entity manages those risks. The standards on the presentation of financial instruments 

carries forward previous guidance unchanged. Section 3863 enhances financial statement users’ understanding of 

the significance of financial instruments to an entity’s financial position, performance and cash flows. Sections 3862 

and 3863 replace Section 3861, Financial Instruments – Disclosure and Presentation. The adoption of these standards 

did not have a material impact on the company’s financial statements

Recent Accounting Pronouncements 

cONSOLidATEd FiNANciAL STATEMENTS

in January 2009, the Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) issued “consolidated Financial Statements”, Section 1601, 

which establishes standards for the preparation of consolidated financial statements. This standard is effective 

on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2011, with earlier 

adoption permitted. The company is assessing the impact of the adoption of this new section on the consolidated 

financial statements.
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iNTERNATiONAL FiNANciAL REPORTiNG STANdARdS

in February 2008, the AcSB confirmed that all canadian publicly accountable enterprises will be required to adopt 

international Financial Reporting Standards (“iFRS”) for interim and annual financial reporting purposes for fiscal 

years beginning on or after January 1, 2011 with comparatives for the prior year. The company will be required 

to report financial statements prepared in accordance with iFRS for the fiscal year ending March 31, 2012 with 

comparatives for fiscal year ending March 31, 2011. 

The impact of the adoption of iFRS on the consolidated financial statements of the company has not yet been 

determined. The company is in the process of developing a changeover plan to transition its financial statement 

reporting under iFRS within the required timeframe. 

A project team has been set up to manage this transition and ensure successful implementation. The team consists 

of senior management personnel with the required experience and knowledge to manage the transition. All project 

members have attended training and education sessions and will continue to do so throughout the conversion 

project. The project team will develop recommendations on accounting policies and will periodically report to the 

audit committee about the status of the changeover plan. 

The company expects its changeover plan to be carried out in the following phases:

diagnostic Analysis 

Preliminary Assessment

n initial project plan considering resources, timelines and overall project approach 

n identify key areas of differences between GAAP and iFRS 

Detailed Assessment

n identify and evaluate iFRS 1 elective and mandatory exemptions 

n Provide detailed assessment of the available accounting policy alternatives 

n Provide recommendations on the adoption of accounting policies 

Plan and design 

n Evaluate business processes and information requirements 

n develop detailed project plan for the implementation for each specific item

n develop timelines, resource requirements, status reporting and training programs  

n Assess effects on computer systems and internal controls over financial reporting 

implement and Monitor 

n implement processes for required information gathering 

n Prepare iFRS compliant financial statements and notes 

n implement and test internal controls over financial reporting and any changes to computer systems 

n Provide ongoing training and education 

n Monitor reporting requirements on an on-going basis 

As part of the changeover plan, the company will assess the effects of the adoption of the new standards on its 

information and computer systems, business activities and internal controls over financial reporting. 

The company will continue to monitor any changes to iFRS as issued by the international Accounting Standards 

Board and the AcSB and will update its quarterly Md&A disclosures to report on the progress of its iFRS 

changeover plan.
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Outstanding Share Data as at May 21, 2009
cMG’s authorized share capital has remained unchanged from April 1, 2009 to May 21, 2009 and subsequent to 

March 31, 2009 the only share capital transactions were for the exercise of 6,750 stock options to acquire common 

Shares of the company. cMG’s issued and outstanding shares at May 21, 2009 are 14,370,322 common Shares and 

2,895,946 Non-Voting Shares. 

On July 13, 2005, cMG adopted a rolling stock option plan which allows the company to grant options to its 

employees and directors to acquire common Shares of up to 10 percent of the combined outstanding common 

and Non-Voting Shares at the date of grant. Based upon this calculation, at May 21, 2009, cMG could grant up to 

1,726,626 stock options, of which 1,360,674 are currently issued and outstanding.

Business Risks 
The company has the following business risks: 

cOMMOdiT y PRicE RiSK 

cMG’s customers are oil and gas companies and it might, therefore, be assumed that its financial results are 

significantly impacted by oil commodity prices. cMG’s actual experience of growth in software license revenues 

during depressed oil price markets makes us believe that software license sales are influenced more by the utility of 

the software as opposed to the prevailing commodity price but different circumstances could prevail in the future. 

Low oil prices and resulting lower cash flow in the industry could impact how customers license cMG software; one 

would expect sales of perpetual licenses to decrease in favor of leasing software on a term basis.

Volatility in oil commodity prices will have a certain impact on cMG’s consulting business; however, this business 

segment generates less than 10 percent of total revenues and cMG has no plans to significantly expand this area 

of business. 

cREdiT ANd LiQUidiT y RiSKS

The recent economic downturn may affect the demand for our products as well as the customers’ ability to pay. 

Our product demand is dependent on the customers’ overall spending plans and, in light of decreasing commodity 

prices, oil and gas companies have been curtailing their levels of spending. This risk is mitigated by having a 

diversified customer base with the majority of revenues being derived from larger entities which are not as affected 

by the market volatility.  

The company mitigates the collection risk by closely monitoring its accounts receivable and assessing 

creditworthiness of its customers. The company has not had any significant revenue losses to date. 

in terms of liquidity, the company holds over $34 million of cash which more than covers its obligations and it has a 

$1.0 million credit facility available for its use. The company’s cash is held with a reputable banking institution. For 

the described reasons, we believe that our liquidity risk is low. 

SALES VARiABiLiT y RiSK

cMG’s software license revenues consists of annuity/maintenance software licensing, which is generally for a term 

of one year or less, and perpetual software licensing, whereby the customer purchases the then current version 

of the software and has the right to use that version in perpetuity. Software licensing under perpetual sales is a 

significant part of cMG’s business but is more variable in nature as the purchase decision, and its timing, fluctuates 

with clients’ needs and budgets. cMG has found that a number of clients prefer to acquire perpetual software 

licenses rather than leasing the software on an annual basis. The experience over the last few years is that a 

number of these clients are purchasing additional licenses to allow more users to access cMG technology in their 
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operations. cMG has found that a large percentage of its customers who have acquired perpetual software licenses 

are subsequently purchasing maintenance licenses to ensure they have access to current cMG technology. 

The variability in sales of perpetual licenses may cause significant fluctuations in the company’s quarterly financial 

results, and these results may not meet the expectations of analysts or investors. Accordingly, the company’s past 

results may not be a good indication of its future performance. 

cMG’s customers are both domestic and international oil and gas companies and in its 2009 and 2008 fiscal years, 

cMG derived 11.9 percent (2008 – 14.7 percent) of its revenue from one customer. 

FOREiGN EXcHANGE RiSK

cMG’s reported results are affected by the exchange rate between the canadian dollar and the US dollar as 

approximately 68 percent (2008 – 67 percent) of product revenues in fiscal 2009 were denominated in US dollars. 

Approximately 18 to 20 percent of cMG’s total costs in fiscal 2009 were denominated in US dollars and provided 

a partial economic hedge against the fluctuation in currency exchange between the US and the canadian dollar 

on revenues. cMG’s residual revenues and costs are primarily denominated in canadian dollars and its policy is to 

convert excess US dollar cash into canadian dollars when received.

EcONOMic ANd POLiTicAL RiSK 

cMG sells its products and services in 49 countries worldwide. Some of these countries have greater economic 

and political risk than experienced in North America and as a result there may be greater risk associated with sales 

in those jurisdictions. cMG manages this risk by invoicing for the full license term in advance for the majority of 

software license sales and by invoicing as frequently as the contract allows for consulting and contract research 

services on a percentage-of-completion basis. in addition, cMG assesses if specific insurance should be acquired 

depending upon the size of the sale and its view of the country risk at the time of sale.

cOMPETiTiON RiSK 

competition is a risk for cMG as it is for almost every company in every sector. The reservoir simulation software 

industry currently consists of four major suppliers (including cMG) and a number of small suppliers. Some of the 

other suppliers, including three major suppliers, offer products or oil field services outside the scope of reservoir 

simulation. Some potential customers may prefer to deal with such multi-service suppliers while others prefer an 

independent supplier, such as cMG.

Although competition is very active, cMG believes that its proven technology and the comprehensive scope of 

its products, combined with its international presence and recognition as a major independent supplier, provide 

distinct competitive advantages.

Sustaining competitive advantage is another issue, which cMG addresses by making a significant ongoing 

commitment to research and development spending. cMG expended $8.0 million (2008 – $6.4 million) in product 

research and development in its most recent fiscal year.

The introduction by competitors of products embodying new technology and the emergence of new industry 

standards and practices could render cMG’s products obsolete and unmarketable and could exert price pressures 

on existing products, which could have negative effects on the company’s business, operating results and financial 

condition. 

There is a significant barrier for new entrants into the reservoir simulation software industry. The cost of entry is 

substantial as a significant investment in research and development is required. in addition, to become a major 

supplier, a significant time investment is required to build up quality relationships with potential clients. 
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LABOUR RiSK 

The company’s continued success is substantially dependent on the performance of its key employees and officers. 

The loss of the services of these personnel as well as failure to attract additional key personnel could have a negative 

impact upon the company’s business, operating results and financial condition.  due to high levels of competition 

for qualified personnel, there can be no assurance that the company will be successful in retaining and attracting 

such personnel. The company attempts to overcome this by offering an attractive compensation package and 

providing an environment that provides the intellectual and professional stimulation attractive to our employee 

group.

iNTELLEc TUAL PROPERT y RiSK 

cMG regards its software as proprietary and attempts to protect it with copyrights, trademarks and trade secret 

measures, including restrictions on disclosure and technical measures. despite these precautions, it may be possible 

for third parties to copy cMG’s programs or aspects of its trade secrets. cMG has no patents, and existing legal and 

technical precautions afford only limited practical protection. cMG could incur substantial costs in protecting and 

enforcing its intellectual property rights. Moreover, from time to time third parties may assert patent, trademark, 

copyright and other intellectual property rights to technologies that are important to cMG. in such an event, cMG 

may be required to incur significant costs in litigating a resolution to the asserted claim. There can be no assurance 

that such a resolution would not require that cMG pay damages or obtain a license of a third party’s proprietary 

rights in order to continue licensing its products as currently offered, or, if such a license is required, that it will be 

available on terms acceptable to cMG.

cMG does not know of any infringement of any third party’s patent rights, copyrights, trade secrecy rights or other 

intellectual property disputes in the development or support of its products. 

Disclosure and Internal Controls
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as defined 

under Multilateral instrument 52-109. At March 31, 2009, the chief Executive Officer and the chief Financial Officer 

concluded that the design and operation of these disclosure controls and procedures were effective and that 

material information relating to the company, including its subsidiaries, was made known to them and was recorded, 

processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified under applicable securities legislation. 

Management is responsible for the design and operation of its internal controls over financial reporting as defined 

under Multilateral instrument 52-109. At March 31, 2009, the chief Executive Officer and the chief Financial Officer 

concluded that the design and operation of these internal controls and procedures was effective in order to provide 

reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 

external purposes in accordance with canadian GAAP. it should be noted that while the company’s cEO and cFO 

believe that the company’s disclosure controls and procedures provide a reasonable level of assurance that they 

are effective, they do not expect that the disclosure controls and procedures will prevent all errors and fraud. A 

control system, no matter how well conceived or operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance 

that the objectives of the control system are met. 

Changes in Internal Controls over Financial Reporting
during the year ended March 31, 2009, in response to growth in the company’s operations and increased financial 

and regulatory compliance requirements, additional qualified finance and administrative staff were added. Work 

duties were redistributed accordingly to ensure segregation between input and review of financial information, 

ongoing monitoring of new accounting and reporting standards and their applicability to the company, and the 

ongoing assessment of the current accounting policies. 
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in light of the above changes, it is management’s opinion that the lack in segregation of duties in respect to the 

limited number of employees dealing with complex accounting, reporting and taxation issues identified in the 

prior year’s Md&A has been remediated at March 31, 2009.

Forward-looking Information
certain information included in this Md&A is forward-looking. Forward-looking information includes statements 

that are not statements of historical fact and which address activities, events or developments that the company 

expects or anticipates will or may occur in the future, including such things as investment objectives and strategy, 

the development plans and status of the company’s software development projects, the company’s intentions, 

results of operations, levels of activity, future capital and other expenditures (including the amount, nature and 

sources of funding thereof), business prospects and opportunities, research and development timetable, and 

future growth and performance. When used in this Md&A, statements to the effect that the company or its 

management “believes”, “expects”, “expected”, “plans”, “may”, “will”, “projects”, “anticipates”, “estimates”, “would”, 

“could”, “should”, “endeavours”, “seeks”, “predicts” or “intends” or similar statements, including “potential”, 

“opportunity”, “target” or other variations thereof that are not statements of historical fact should be construed as 

forward-looking information. These statements reflect management’s current beliefs with respect to future events 

and are based on information currently available to management of the company. The company believes that 

the expectations reflected in such forward-looking information are reasonable, but no assurance can be given 

that these expectations will prove to be correct and such forward-looking information should not be unduly  

relied upon.

With respect to forward-looking information contained in this Md&A, we have made assumptions regarding, 

among other things:

n Future software license sales

n  The continued financing by and participation of its partners in the dRMS project and its completeness in 

a timely manner

n Ability to enter into additional software license agreements

n Ability to continue current research and new product development

n Ability to recruit and retain qualified staff

Forward-looking information is not a guarantee of future performance and involves a number of risks and 

uncertainties, only some of which are described herein. Many factors could cause the company’s actual results, 

performance or achievements, or future events or developments, to differ materially from those expressed or 

implied by the forward-looking information, including without limitation, the following factors, which are discussed 

in greater detail in the “Business Factors” section of this Md&A.

n Economic conditions in the oil and gas industry

n Reliance on key clients

n Foreign exchange

n Economic and political risks in countries where the company currently does or proposes to do business

n increased competition

n Reliance on employees with specialized skills or knowledge

n Protection of proprietary rights

Should one or more of these risks or uncertainties materialize, or should assumptions underlying the forward-

looking statements prove incorrect, actual results, performance or achievement may vary materially from those 
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expressed or implied by the forward-looking information contained in this Md&A. These factors should be carefully 

considered and readers are cautioned not to place undue reliance on forward-looking information, which speaks 

only as of the date of this Md&A. All subsequent forward-looking information attributable to the company herein 

is expressly qualified in its entirety by the cautionary statements contained in or referred to herein. The company 

does not undertake any obligation to release publicly any revisions to forward-looking information contained in 

this Md&A to reflect events or circumstances that occur after the date of this Md&A or to reflect the occurrence of 

unanticipated events, except as may be required under applicable securities laws.

This Management discussion and Analysis was reviewed and approved by the Audit committee and Board of 

directors and is effective as of May 21, 2009. 
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Management’s Statement of Responsibility
Management is responsible for the accompanying consolidated financial statements and all other information 
contained in this Annual Report. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
generally accepted accounting principles in canada consistently applied, using management’s best estimates 
and judgements, where appropriate. Financial information included elsewhere in this report is consistent with the 
consolidated financial statements.

Management maintains an appropriate system of accounting and administrative controls to provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are properly authorized, assets are safeguarded and financial records are properly 
maintained to provide reliable financial statements.

KPMG LLP, chartered Accountants, appointed by the shareholders, have audited the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with canadian generally accepted auditing standards.

The Board of directors, through its Audit committee, is responsible for ensuring that management fulfills its 
financial reporting responsibilities. The Audit committee reviews the financial content of the Annual Report 
and meets regularly with management and KPMG LLP to discuss internal controls, accounting and auditing and 
financial matters. The committee reports its findings to the Board of directors for its consideration in approving 
the consolidated financial statements.

John Kalman, cA  Kenneth M. dedeluk
Vice President, Finance and cFO President and chief Executive Officer

calgary, canada
May 21, 2009

Auditors’ Report to the Shareholders
We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of computer Modelling Group Ltd. as at March 31, 2009 and 
2008 and the consolidated statements of earnings and retained earnings and cash flows for the years then ended. 
These financial statements are the responsibility of the company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform an audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are 
free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts 
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and 
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.

in our opinion, these consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position 
of the company as at March 31, 2009 and 2008 and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then 
ended in accordance with canadian generally accepted accounting principles.

chartered Accountants
calgary, canada

May 21, 2009
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

ASSETS

current assets:

cash  $ 34,701,292  $ 23,479,430

Accounts receivable 11,352,448 7,908,072

Prepaid expenses 825,892 659,348

46,879,632 32,046,850

Property and equipment (note 3) 1,112,103 1,252,544

Future income taxes (note 5) 52,340 39,763

 $ 48,044,075  $ 33,339,157

LiABiLiTiES ANd SHAREHOLdERS’ EQUiT y

current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 4,951,571  $ 3,032,638

income taxes payable 3,438,733 1,391,921

deferred revenue 11,796,342 8,839,214

Future income taxes (note 5) 197,272 87,982

20,383,918 13,351,755

Shareholders’ equity:

Share capital (note 6) 16,083,799 14,087,179

contributed surplus (note 6) 1,245,485 744,405

Retained earnings 10,330,873 5,155,818

27,660,157 19,987,402

 $ 48,044,075  $ 33,339,157

commitments (note 9)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board

Frank L. Meyer Robert F. M. Smith
director director

Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Retained Earnings

years ended March 31, 2009 2008

REVENUE

Software licenses  $ 38,406,245  $ 22,606,960

consulting and contract research 5,535,276 5,385,902

43,941,521 27,992,862

cOST OF SALES

Marketing expenses 7,142,764 4,897,216

direct consulting expenses 1,834,075 1,605,822

Third-party contract costs 179,872 281,765

9,156,711 6,784,803

GROSS PROFiT 34,784,810 21,208,059

General and administrative expenses 3,955,507 3,060,789

depreciation and amortization 323,330 328,507

Product research and development costs (note 4) 7,975,130 6,433,275

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (1,160,871) 363,180

interest and other income (555,591) (840,362)

Earnings before income and other taxes 24,247,305   11,862,670

income and other taxes (note 5) 7,630,934 4,262,962

EARNiNGS FOR THE yEAR  16,616,371 7,599,708

Retained earnings, beginning of year 5,155,818 5,524,107

dividends paid (10,925,980)  (6,952,215)

common shares buy-back (note 6(c)) (515,336) (1,015,782)

Retained earnings, end of year  $ 10,330,873  $  5,155,818

EARNiNGS PER SHARE 

Basic (note 6(e))  $ 0.97  $ 0.45

diluted (note 6(e))  $ 0.95  $ 0.44

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheets

March 31, 2009 March 31, 2008

ASSETS

current assets:

cash  $ 34,701,292  $ 23,479,430

Accounts receivable 11,352,448 7,908,072

Prepaid expenses 825,892 659,348

46,879,632 32,046,850

Property and equipment (note 3) 1,112,103 1,252,544

Future income taxes (note 5) 52,340 39,763

 $ 48,044,075  $ 33,339,157

LiABiLiTiES ANd SHAREHOLdERS’ EQUiT y

current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities  $ 4,951,571  $ 3,032,638

income taxes payable 3,438,733 1,391,921

deferred revenue 11,796,342 8,839,214

Future income taxes (note 5) 197,272 87,982

20,383,918 13,351,755

Shareholders’ equity:

Share capital (note 6) 16,083,799 14,087,179

contributed surplus (note 6) 1,245,485 744,405

Retained earnings 10,330,873 5,155,818

27,660,157 19,987,402

 $ 48,044,075  $ 33,339,157

commitments (note 9)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Approved by the Board

Frank L. Meyer Robert F. M. Smith
director director

Consolidated Statements of Earnings and Retained Earnings

years ended March 31, 2009 2008

REVENUE

Software licenses  $ 38,406,245  $ 22,606,960

consulting and contract research 5,535,276 5,385,902

43,941,521 27,992,862

cOST OF SALES

Marketing expenses 7,142,764 4,897,216

direct consulting expenses 1,834,075 1,605,822

Third-party contract costs 179,872 281,765

9,156,711 6,784,803

GROSS PROFiT 34,784,810 21,208,059

General and administrative expenses 3,955,507 3,060,789

depreciation and amortization 323,330 328,507

Product research and development costs (note 4) 7,975,130 6,433,275

Foreign exchange (gain)/loss (1,160,871) 363,180

interest and other income (555,591) (840,362)

Earnings before income and other taxes 24,247,305   11,862,670

income and other taxes (note 5) 7,630,934 4,262,962

EARNiNGS FOR THE yEAR  16,616,371 7,599,708

Retained earnings, beginning of year 5,155,818 5,524,107

dividends paid (10,925,980)  (6,952,215)

common shares buy-back (note 6(c)) (515,336) (1,015,782)

Retained earnings, end of year  $ 10,330,873  $  5,155,818

EARNiNGS PER SHARE 

Basic (note 6(e))  $ 0.97  $ 0.45

diluted (note 6(e))  $ 0.95  $ 0.44

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

years ended March 31, 2009 2008

cASH PROVidEd By (USEd FOR)

Operating

Earnings for the year  $ 16,616,371  $ 7,599,708

items not involving cash:

depreciation and amortization 716,422 676,576

Future income taxes (note 5) 96,713 15,192

Stock-based compensation 841,731 520,533

18,271,237 8,812,009

changes in non-cash working capital:

Accounts receivable (3,444,376) (126,839)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    1,918,933 542,286

income taxes payable 2,046,812 (229,126)

Prepaid expenses (166,544) (138,887)

deferred revenue 2,957,128 1,254,486

21,583,190 10,113,929

Financing

issue of common shares 1,739,197 1,368,061

dividends paid (10,925,980) (6,952,215)

common shares buy-back (note 6(c)) (598,564) (1,187,686)

(9,785,347) (6,771,840)

investing

Property and equipment additions (575,981) (641,109)

increase in cash 11,221,862 2,700,980

cash, beginning of year 23,479,430 20,778,450

cash, end of year  $ 34,701,292  $ 23,479,430

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (note 11).

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

years ended March 31, 2009 2008

cASH PROVidEd By (USEd FOR)

Operating

Earnings for the year  $ 16,616,371  $ 7,599,708

items not involving cash:

depreciation and amortization 716,422 676,576

Future income taxes (note 5) 96,713 15,192

Stock-based compensation 841,731 520,533

18,271,237 8,812,009

changes in non-cash working capital:

Accounts receivable (3,444,376) (126,839)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities    1,918,933 542,286

income taxes payable 2,046,812 (229,126)

Prepaid expenses (166,544) (138,887)

deferred revenue 2,957,128 1,254,486

21,583,190 10,113,929

Financing

issue of common shares 1,739,197 1,368,061

dividends paid (10,925,980) (6,952,215)

common shares buy-back (note 6(c)) (598,564) (1,187,686)

(9,785,347) (6,771,840)

investing

Property and equipment additions (575,981) (641,109)

increase in cash 11,221,862 2,700,980

cash, beginning of year 23,479,430 20,778,450

cash, end of year  $ 34,701,292  $ 23,479,430

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information (note 11).

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

years ended March 31, 2009 and 2008

computer Modelling Group Ltd. (the “company”) is a computer software technology and consulting firm engaged in the 

development and sale of reservoir simulation software. The company’s reservoir simulation software is proven and effective 

technology, which assists petroleum companies to extract a significantly increased amount of oil and gas from their reservoirs.

n ot e  1.  SiGNiFicANT AccOUNTiNG POLiciES:

(a) Basis of consolidation:

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with canadian generally accepted 

accounting principles (“GAAP”) and include the accounts of the company and its subsidiaries, all 100 percent 

owned. All intercompany transactions have been eliminated.

(b) Revenue Recognition:

Revenue consists primarily of software license fees and consulting and contract research fees. 

Software license revenue is comprised of annuity/maintenance license fees charged for the use of the company’s 

software products which is generally for a term of one year or less, and perpetual software licensing, whereby the 

customer purchases the then current version of the software and has the right to use that version in perpetuity. 

Software license revenue is recognized when persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists, the product has been 

delivered, the fee is fixed or determinable, and collection of the resulting receivable is probable. in cases where 

collectibility is not deemed probable, revenue is recognized upon receipt of cash, assuming all other criteria have 

been met.

Annuity/maintenance revenue is deferred and recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the related license 

period, which is generally one year or less. License fees for perpetual licenses are recognized fully in revenue when 

all recognition conditions are satisfied.

consulting and contract research revenues are recorded on a percentage-of-completion basis whereby revenues 

and costs are recorded in operations based on work completed. 

(c) Property and Equipment:

Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. 

depreciation is provided using the following annual rates and methods that are expected to amortize the cost of 

the property and equipment over their estimated useful lives:

 computer equipment 33 1/3% straight-line

 Furniture and equipment 20% straight-line

 Leasehold improvements Straight-line over the lease term

(d) Product Research and development costs:

All costs of product research and development are expensed to operations as incurred as the impact of both 

technological changes and competition require the company to continually enhance its products on an annual 

basis. Product research and development costs are recorded net of the related investment tax credits. 

(e) Joint Research and development costs:

The company participates in a joint project engaged in product research and development and accordingly 

records its proportionate share of costs incurred as product research and development costs.



(f) Foreign currency:

The company’s subsidiaries are considered to be integrated operations. Accordingly, monetary assets and liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies are translated into canadian dollars at the rate of exchange prevailing at the 

balance sheet date while other consolidated balance sheet items are translated at historic rates.

Revenues and expenses are translated at the rate of exchange in effect on the transaction dates. Realized and 

unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses are included in operations in the period in which they occur.

(g) income Taxes:

The company provides for income taxes using the asset and liability method. Under this method, current income 

taxes are recognized for the estimated income taxes payable for the current year and future income taxes are 

recognized for temporary differences between the tax and accounting bases of assets and liabilities and for the 

benefit of losses available to be carried forward for tax purposes that are more likely than not to be realized. 

Future income tax assets and liabilities are measured using the substantively enacted tax rates expected to apply 

in the years in which temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. Any change to the net future 

income tax assets and liabilities is included in operations in the period it occurs. 

(h) investment Tax credits:

The company receives federal and provincial investment tax credits in canada on qualified scientific research 

and development expenditures (“SR&Ed”). investment tax credits are recorded as a deduction against related 

expenses or capital items provided that the reasonable assurance over collection of the tax credits exists. 

(i) Earnings Per Share:

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing earnings by the weighted average number of common and 

Non-Voting Shares outstanding for the period. diluted per share amounts reflect the potential dilution that could 

occur if securities or other contracts to issue common Shares were exercised or converted to common Shares. 

The treasury stock method is used to determine the dilutive effect of stock options. This method assumes that 

proceeds received from the exercise of in-the-money stock options are used to repurchase common Shares at the 

average market price during the period. 

(j) Stock-based compensation Plan:

The company has a stock-based compensation plan that is described in note 6(d). The fair value of stock options is 

expensed over the vesting period along with a credit to contributed surplus. When the stock options are exercised 

for stock, the recorded amount is transferred from contributed surplus to common share capital.

(k) Financial instruments:

Financial assets and financial liabilities “held-for-trading” are measured at fair value with changes in those fair 

values recognized in net earnings. Financial assets “available-for-sale” are measured at fair value, with changes 

in those fair values recognized in other comprehensive income. Financial assets “held-to-maturity,” “loans and 

receivables” and “other financial liabilities” are measured at amortized cost. 

(l) Use of Estimates and Assumptions:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with canadian generally accepted accounting principles 

requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and 

liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the 

reported amounts of revenue, costs and expenses for the period. Actual results may differ from such estimates 

and the differences could be material.
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n ot e 2. cHANGES iN AccOUNTiNG POLiciES ANd REcENT AccOUNTiNG PRONOUNcEMENTS:

(a) changes in accounting policies:  

On April 1, 2008, the company adopted the following canadian institute of chartered Accountants (“cicA”) 

Handbook Sections:

•	 	“Capital	Disclosures”,	Section	1535.		The	new	standard	requires	the	Company	to	disclose	its	objectives,	policies	

and processes for managing its capital structure.  Reference is made to note 7.

•	 	“Financial	 Instruments	 –	 Presentation”,	 Section	 3863	 and	 “Financial	 Instruments	 –	 Disclosures”,	 Section	

3862.  These accounting standards replaced “Financial instruments – disclosure and Presentation”, Section 

3861.  The disclosures required by Section 3862 provide additional information on the risks associated with 

our financial instruments and how we manage those risks. The standards on the presentation of financial 

instruments carries forward previous guidance unchanged. Section 3863 enhances financial statement users’ 

understanding of the significance of financial instruments to an entity’s financial position, performance and 

cash flows.  Reference is made to note 8.

(b) Recent accounting pronouncements:  

in January 2006, the cicA Accounting Standards Board (“AcSB”) adopted a strategic plan for the direction of 

accounting standards in canada.  As part of that plan, the AcSB confirmed in February 2008 that international 

Financial Reporting Standards (“iFRS”) will replace canadian GAAP in 2011 for profit-oriented canadian publicly 

accountable enterprises.  As the company will be required to report its results in accordance with iFRS starting in 

2011, the company is assessing the potential impacts of this changeover and developing its plan accordingly.

in January 2009, the AcSB issued “consolidated Financial Statements”, Section 1601, which establishes standards 

for the preparation of consolidated financial statements. This standard is effective on or after the beginning of the 

first annual reporting period beginning on or after January 1, 2011, with earlier adoption permitted. The company 

is assessing the impact of the adoption of this new section on the consolidated financial statements. 

n ot e 3. PROPERT y ANd EQUiPMENT:

March 31, 2009 cost
Accumulated
depreciation Net Book Value

computer equipment  $ 2,487,946  $ 1,807,704  $ 680,242

Furniture and equipment 690,742 532,059 158,683

Leasehold improvements 1,122,177 848,999 273,178

  $ 4,300,865  $ 3,188,762  $  1,112,103

March 31, 2008 cost
Accumulated
depreciation Net Book Value

computer equipment  $ 2,210,966  $ 1,389,177  $ 821,789

Furniture and equipment 625,324 481,109 144,215

Leasehold improvements 972,553 686,013 286,540

 $ 3,808,843  $ 2,556,299  $ 1,252,544

n ot e 4. PROdUc T RESEARcH ANd dEVELOPMENT cOSTS:

years ended March 31, 2009 2008

Product research and development costs  $ 8,586,208  $ 6,384,667

depreciation 393,092 348,069

Scientific research and experimental development investment tax credits (1,004,170) (299,461)

 $ 7,975,130  $ 6,433,275
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n ot e 5. iNcOME ANd OTHER TAXES:

The provision for income and other taxes reported differs from the amount computed by applying the combined 

canadian Federal and Provincial statutory rate to the earnings before income and other taxes. The reasons for this 

difference and the related tax effects are as follows:

years ended March 31, 2009 2008

Statutory tax rate 29.38% 31.47%

Expected income tax  $ 7,123,858  $ 3,733,182

Non-deductible costs 277,876 184,680

change in valuation allowance  (20,928) 236,553

Withholding taxes 229,905 70,661

Other 20,223 37,886

 $  7,630,934  $ 4,262,962

Represented by:

current income taxes  $ 7,206,504  $ 4,133,079

Future income taxes 96,713 15,192

Foreign withholding and other taxes 327,717 114,691

 $ 7,630,934  $ 4,262,962

The components of the company’s net future income tax liability are as follows:

March 31, 2009 2008

investment tax credits, net of future tax liabilities  $   290,465  $ 458,995

Property and equipment 52,340 39,763

Benefit of operating losses in a foreign subsidiary 195,398 216,326

 $ 538,203  $  715,084

Valuation allowance (683,135) (763,303)

Future income tax liability, net (144,932) (48,219)

Represented by:

Future income tax liability, current  $ (197,272)  $ (87,982)

Future income tax asset, long-term 52,340 39,763

Future income tax liability, net  $ (144,932)  $ (48,219)

The operating losses in the foreign subsidiary expire in fiscal 2010.

n ot e 6. SHARE cAPiTAL:

(a) Authorized:

An unlimited number of common Shares, an unlimited number of Non-Voting Shares, and an unlimited number 

of Preferred Shares, issuable in series.

Effective August 1, 2008, the common and Non-Voting Shares were split on a two-for-one basis. Accordingly, 

the comparative number of shares and per share amounts have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the 

two-for-one split.
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(b) issued:

common Shares Non-Voting Shares contributed 
SurplusNumber consideration Number consideration

Balance, March 31, 2007 11,638,222  $ 12,254,620 4,919,550  $ 316,268  $ 544,006

issued for cash on exercise of  
stock options 472,940 1,368,061

common Shares buy-back (164,800) (171,904)

converted into common Shares 970,516 62,392 (970,516) (62,392)

Stock-based compensation:

current period expense 520,533

Stock options exercised 320,134 (320,134)

Balance, March 31, 2008 12,916,878  $ 13,833,303 3,949,034  $  253,876  $ 744,405

issued for cash on exercise of  
stock options 468,726 1,739,197

common Shares buy-back (75,120) (83,228)

converted into common Shares 1,053,088 67,701 (1,053,088) (67,701)

Stock-based compensation:

current period expense 841,731

Stock options exercised 340,651 (340,651)

Balance, March 31, 2009 14,363,572  $ 15,897,624 2,895,946  $ 186,175  $ 1,245,485

The Non-Voting Shares are convertible into an equivalent number of common Shares at any time at the option 

of the holder. 

Subsequent to March 31, 2009, 6,750 stock options were exercised for cash proceeds of $44,895.

On May 18, 2006, the Board of directors adopted a shareholder rights plan (the “Original Rights Plan”), whereby 

the company will issue one right in respect of each share outstanding at the close of business on May 18, 2006 and 

for each additional share issued by the company thereafter. The issuance of the rights is not dilutive and will not 

affect reported earnings per share until the rights separate from the underlying shares and become exercisable 

or until the exercise of the rights. The Original Rights Plan was approved by the company’s shareholders on July 

13, 2006.

On May 21, 2009, the Board of directors reviewed the Original Rights Plan and determined that it was in the best 

interest of the corporation to continue to have a shareholder rights plan in place. The corporation, therefore, 

adopted a new shareholder rights plan (the “Rights Plan”) which is identical in all respects to the Original Rights 

Plan, with the exception of certain minor amendments which have been made to provide for renewal or approval 

of the Rights Plan every three years (rather than only one three-year period as was set out in the Original Rights 

Plan) and to update references to statutory provisions now out of date. Subject to the approval of the Toronto 

Stock Exchange, the Board will place the Rights Plan before Shareholders for approval at the Annual and Special 

Meeting of Shareholders to be held on July 9, 2009. if the Rights Plan is not approved, it will expire immediately 

following termination of the meeting.

(c) common Shares Buy-back:

On december 14, 2006, the company announced a Normal course issuer Bid (“NciB”) commencing december 20, 

2006 to purchase for cancellation up to 670,000 of its common Shares. This NciB ended on december 19, 2007 

and a total of 164,800 common Shares were repurchased at market price for a total cost of $1,187,686. 

On February 26, 2008, the company announced a NciB commencing February 28, 2008 to purchase for cancellation 

up to 970,000 of its common Shares. This NciB ended on February 27, 2009 and a total of 75,120 shares have been 

repurchased at market price for a total cost of $598,564. 

On February 27, 2009, the company announced a NciB commencing March 3, 2009 to purchase for cancellation up to 

1,114,791 of its common Shares. No shares have been purchased pursuant to this NciB through March 31, 2009. 
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(d) Stock-based compensation Plan:

The company adopted a rolling stock option plan as of July 13, 2005, which was reaffirmed by the company’s 

shareholders on July 10, 2008, which allows it to grant options to acquire common Shares of up to 10 percent of 

the combined outstanding common and Non-Voting Shares at the date of grant.  Based upon this calculation, at 

March 31, 2009, the company could grant up to 1,725,952 stock options.  Pursuant to the stock option plan, the 

maximum term of an option granted cannot exceed five years from the date of grant. These outstanding stock 

options vest as to 50 percent after the first year anniversary, from date of grant, and then vest as to 25 percent of 

the total options granted after each of the second and third year anniversary dates. 

As a result of the two-for-one stock split, the number of outstanding options was adjusted in accordance with 

existing plan provisions. All prior period number of options as well as weighted average exercise prices and fair 

values per option have been retroactively adjusted to reflect the two-for-one stock split.

The following table outlines changes in options as of March 31: 

2009 2008

Options 
Granted

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price
Options 
Granted

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price

Outstanding at beginning of year 1,235,150  $ 4.95 1,265,590  $ 3.28

Granted 620,000 11.03 475,000 7.39

Exercised (468,726) 3.71 (472,940) 2.90

Forfeited (19,000) 7.38 (32,500) 5.57

Outstanding at end of year    1,367,424  $ 8.10 1,235,150  $ 4.95

Options exercisable at end of year 371,424  $ 5.47 365,400  $ 3.26

The range of exercise prices of options outstanding and exercisable at March 31, 2009 is as follows: 

Outstanding Exercisable 

Exercise Price 
($/option)

Number of 
Options

Weighted 
Average 

Remaining 
contractual 

Life (years)

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
($/option)

Number of 
Options

Weighted 
Average 

Exercise Price 
($/option)

2.10 – 3.50 70,324 1.2 3.26 70,324 3.26

3.51 – 5.62 270,600 2.4 3.76 116,600 3.76

5.63 – 6.90 8,000 4.6 6.90 – –

6.91 – 7.40 411,500 3.4 7.39 184,500 7.39

7.41 – 8.76 2,000 5.0 8.76 – –

8.77 – 11.26 605,000 4.4 11.10 – –

1,367,424 3.5 8.10 371,424 5.47

The fair value of stock options granted was estimated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model under the 

following assumptions:

years ended March 31, 2009 2008 2007

Weighted-Average Fair Value ($/option) 0.98 to 2.01 1.15 to 1.77 0.46 to 1.21

Risk-Free interest Rate (%) 1.5 to 3.1 3.2 to 4.25 4.1

Estimated Hold Period Prior to Exercise (years) 2 to 5 2 to 5 2 to 5

Volatility in the Price of common Shares (%) 31 to 49 30 to 33 29 to 32

dividends per common Share ($/share) 0.53 to 0.73 0.30 to 0.40 0.24 to 0.26

The company recognized a total stock-based compensation expense for the year ended March 31, 2009 of 

$841,731 (2008 – $520,533).
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(e) Earnings Per Share:

The following table summarizes the earnings and weighted average number of common and Non-Voting Shares 

used in calculating basic and diluted earnings per share:

years ended March 31, 2009 2008

Earnings

Weighted 
Average 

Shares 
Outstanding

Earnings 
Per Share Earnings

Weighted 
Average 

Shares 
Outstanding

Earnings 
Per Share

Basic $ 16,616,371 17,172,234 $ 0.97  $ 7,599,708 16,745,468  $ 0.45 

dilutive effect of   
stock options 230,589  404,038  

diluted $ 16,616,371 17,402,823 $ 0.95  $ 7,599,708 17,149,506  $ 0.44 

during the year ended March 31, 2009, 607,000 (2008 – 230,500) options were excluded from the computation 

of the weighted-average number of diluted shares outstanding because their exercise price was greater than the 

average market price of the common shares during the period.

n ot e 7. cAPiTAL MANAGEMENT:  

The company’s objectives in managing capital are to ensure sufficient liquidity to pursue its strategy of organic 

growth combined with strategic acquisitions and to maximize the return to its shareholders.  The capital structure of 

the company consists of cash, credit facilities and shareholders’ equity.  The company does not have any externally 

imposed capital requirements and does not presently utilize any quantitative measures to monitor its capital.

The company’s policy is to pay quarterly dividends based on the company’s overall financial performance and cash 

flow generation.  in addition, since May 2005, the company declared a special dividend after review of the completion 

of the immediately prior fiscal year results.  decisions on dividend payments are made on a quarterly basis by the Board 

of directors.  There can be no assurance as to the amount or payment of such dividends in the future.  

Since November 2002, the company embarked on a series of normal course issuer bids to buy back its shares.  The 

latest normal course issuer bid is effective from March 3, 2009 to March 2, 2010.  Reference is made to note 6(c).

The company makes adjustments to its capital structure in light of general economic conditions and the company’s 

working capital requirements.  in order to maintain or adjust its capital structure, the company, upon approval from 

its Board of directors, may pay dividends, buy back shares or undertake other activities as deemed appropriate under 

the specific circumstances.  The Board of directors reviews and approves any material transactions not in the ordinary 

course of business.

There were no changes in the company’s approach to capital management during the year. 

n ot e 8. FiNANciAL iNSTRUMENTS:

(i) Classification of financial instruments

classification Measurement

cash Held for trading Fair value 

Accounts receivable Loans and receivables Amortized cost

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities Other financial liabilities Amortized cost

(ii) Fair values of financial instruments

The carrying values of cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their fair values 

due to the short-term nature of these instruments.
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(a) Overview:  

The company is exposed to risks of varying degrees of significance which could affect its ability to achieve its 

strategic objectives for growth.  The main objectives of the company’s risk management process are to ensure 

that risks are properly identified and that the capital base is adequate in relation to those risks.  The principal 

financial risks to which the company is exposed are described below:

(b) credit Risk:  

credit risk is the risk of an unexpected loss if a customer or third party to a financial instrument fails to meet its 

contractual obligation and arises principally from the company’s cash and accounts receivable. The amounts 

reported in the balance sheet for accounts receivable are net of allowances for bad debts, estimated by the 

company’s management based on prior experience and their assessment of the current economic environment.  

The company’s accounts receivable consist primarily of balances from customers operating in the oil and gas 

industry, both domestically and internationally as the company sells its products and services in 49 countries 

worldwide.  Some of these countries have greater economic and political risk than experienced in North America 

and as a result there may be greater risk associated with sales in those jurisdictions.  The company manages this 

risk by invoicing for the full license term in advance for the majority of software license sales and by invoicing as 

frequently as the contract allows for consulting and contract research services on a percentage-of-completion 

basis. in cases where collectibility is not deemed probable, revenue is recognized upon receipt of cash, assuming 

all other criteria have been met.  Historically the company has not experienced any significant losses related 

to individual customers or groups of customers in any particular geographic area; therefore, no allowance for 

doubtful accounts has been established at March 31, 2009. 

As at March 31, 2009, the company has a concentration of credit risk with seven domestic and international 

customers who represent 64 percent of accounts receivable and $679,000 of accounts receivable are over 90 

days.  The company assesses the credit worthiness of its customers on an ongoing basis and it regularly monitors 

the amount and age of balances outstanding.  Accordingly, the company views the credit risks on these amounts 

as normal for the industry.

The company minimizes the credit risk of cash by depositing only with a reputable financial institution in highly 

liquid interest-bearing cash accounts.

The maximum credit exposure is represented by the carrying amount of cash and accounts receivable.

(c)   Market Risk:  

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices of the company’s foreign exchange rates and interest rates will 

affect the company’s income or the value of its financial instruments.

The company operates internationally and primarily prices its products in either the canadian or US dollar.  This 

gives rise to exposure to market risks from changes in the foreign exchange rates between the canadian and US 

dollar.  Approximately 68 percent of the company’s revenues for the year ended March 31, 2009 were denominated 

in US dollars and at March 31, 2009, the company had approximately $7.8 million of its working capital denominated 

in US dollars.  The company currently does not use derivative instruments to hedge its exposure to those risks but 

as approximately 18 to 20 percent of the company’s total costs are also denominated in US dollars they provide 

a partial economic hedge against the fluctuation in this currency exchange. in addition, the company monitors 

levels of foreign currency held by converting excess US dollars into canadian dollars at spot rates. 

The canadian operations are exposed to currency risk on US denominated financial assets and liabilities with 

fluctuations in the rate recognized as foreign exchange gains or losses in the consolidated Statement of Earnings. 

it is estimated that a one cent change in the US dollar would result in a net change of approximately $44,000 on 

net earnings for the year ended March 31, 2009.  A weaker US dollar with respect to the canadian dollar will result 

in a negative impact while the reverse would result from a stronger US dollar.

The company has significant cash balances and no interest-bearing debt.  The company’s current policy is to 

invest excess cash in interest-bearing deposits and/or guaranteed investment certificates issued by its principal 
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banker. The company is exposed to interest cash flow risk from changes in interest rates on its cash balances. 

Based on the March 31, 2009 cash balance, each one percent change in the interest rate on the company’s cash 

balance would change net earnings by approximately $245,000.

(d) Liquidity risk:  

Liquidity risk is the risk that the company is not able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due or can do so 

only at excessive cost.  The company manages liquidity risk through the management of its capital structure as 

outlined in note 7.  The company’s growth is financed through a combination of the cash flows from operations 

and its cash balances on hand.  Given the company’s available liquid resources as compared to the timing of the 

payments of its liabilities, management assesses the company’s liquidity risk to be low. The company monitors its 

expenditures by preparing annual budgets which are updated periodically. At March 31, 2009 the company has 

significant cash balances in excess of its obligations and a $1 million line of credit (note 10) available for its use.  

n ot e 9.    cOMMiTMENTS: 

(a) Research commitments:

(i) On May 1, 2006, the company entered into a two phased joint research and development agreement (the 

“Agreement”).  Phase 1 of this project was completed in fiscal 2007 and work is ongoing on Phase 2. it is estimated 

that the second phase will take 5 years and that the company’s annual expenditures will approximate $2 million 

for its portion of the aggregate project costs. 

during Phase 2, the Agreement provides the participants with withdrawal rights upon the payment of a withdrawal 

fee to the other participants of an amount equal to one year of the withdrawing party’s share of budgeted project 

costs.  in addition to the withdrawal fee, the withdrawing party may be liable for (i) 100 percent of resizing costs if 

the project is scaled back or (ii) a proportionate share of wind down costs should the other participants decide to 

terminate the project as a result of the withdrawal of the participant.

in conjunction with entering into this project, cMG Reservoir Simulation Foundation (the “Foundation”), the sole 

holder of the company’s Non-Voting Shares, agreed, subject to certain termination rights, to provide up to a 

maximum of $5.2 million in research grant funding to cover 50 percent of the company’s estimated share of costs 

over the duration of the project.  For the year ended March 31, 2009, the company has reflected $1,036,821 (2008 - 

$904,349) in research grants from the Foundation in revenue with respect to this project. To March 31, 2009 these 

research grants aggregate to $2,401,797 since commencement of the project.

(ii)  Pursuant to a research and development agreement entered into on January 30, 2001, the Foundation 

provided specified research grants to the company through the term of the agreement, which ended with the 

payment of the final grant in January 2008. during the company’s fiscal year ended March 31, 2008, it received 

$125,000 in cash each quarter which is reflected in consulting and contract research revenues.

(b) Lease commitments:

The company has operating lease commitments relating to its office premises with the minimum annual lease 

rental payments over the next five years as follows: 

   ($)

2010 682,000

2011 103,000

2012 102,000

2013 104,000

2014 106,000

n ot e 10.  LiNE OF cREdiT:

The company has arranged for a $1.0 million line of credit with its principal banker, which can be drawn down by way 

of a demand operating credit facility and/or letters of credit. As at March 31, 2009, $Nil (2008 – US $8,850) had been 

drawn on this line of credit for performance bonds.
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n ot e 11.  SUPPLEMENTAL cASH FLOW iNFORMATiON:

years Ended March 31, 2009 2008

interest received  $ 585,997  $ 856,070

income taxes paid  $ 4,153,084  $ 4,062,752

n ot e 12.  SEGMENTEd iNFORMATiON:

Operating Segments

Year ended March 31, 2009
Software 
Licenses consulting

contract 
Research and 

corporate Total

Revenue   $ 38,406,245  $ 3,216,120   $ 2,319,156  $ 43,941,521

Gross profit 31,426,771 1,038,883 2,319,156 34,784,810

General and administrative expenses 3,955,507 3,955,507

depreciation and amortization 100,363 79,489 143,478 323,330

Product research and  
development costs 7,975,130 7,975,130

interest and other income and  
foreign exchange (1,716,462) (1,716,462)

income and other taxes 321,753 4,979 7,304,202 7,630,934

Earnings (loss) for the year   $ 31,004,655  $   954,415  $ (15,342,699)  $ 16,616,371

Total Assets  $ 10,058,925   $ 1,370,227   $ 36,614,923  $ 48,044,075

capital Expenditures  $ 210,040  $ 80,762   $ 285,179  $ 575,981

Operating Segments

year ended March 31, 2008
Software 
Licenses consulting

contract
Research and 

corporate Total

Revenue  $ 22,606,960  $ 2,771,421  $ 2,614,481  $ 27,992,862

Gross profit 17,839,173 754,405 2,614,481 21,208,059

General and administrative expenses 3,060,789 3,060,789

depreciation and amortization 88,448 72,992 167,067 328,507

Product research and  
development costs 6,433,275 6,433,275

interest and other income and  
foreign exchange (477,182) (477,182)

income and other taxes 100,265 10,568 4,152,129 4,262,962

Earnings (loss) for the year  $ 17,650,460  $ 670,845  $ (10,721,597)  $ 7,599,708

Total Assets  $ 6,854,148  $ 1,121,297   $ 25,363,712  $ 33,339,157

capital Expenditures  $ 89,369  $ 116,945   $ 434,795  $ 641,109

Geographic Segments

years ended March 31, 2009 2008

Revenue
Property and 

Equipment Revenue
Property and 

Equipment

canada  $ 15,228,993   $ 896,105  $ 10,294,261  $ 1,168,598

United States 6,586,271 160,816 4,885,979 27,535

Other Foreign 22,126,257 55,182 12,812,622 56,411

 $ 43,941,521  $ 1,112,103  $ 27,992,862  $ 1,252,544

in the year ended March 31, 2009, the company derived 11.9 percent (2008 – 14.7 percent) of its revenue from 

one customer.

40

c
O

M
PU

TE
R 

M
O

d
EL

Li
N

G
 G

RO
U

P



Corporate Information

d
es

ig
n

ed
 a

n
d 

p
ro

d
u

ce
d 

b
y 

Rh
in

o 
c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 c

o
m

m
u

n
ic

at
io

n
s 

in
c.

diREc TORS

Kenneth M. dedeluk

Patrick R. Jamieson (1)

Peter H. Kinash (2)

Kenneth F. Mccready (2)

Frank L. Meyer (1)

Chairman of the Board

Robert F. M. Smith (3)

John B. Zaozirny (4)

(1) Member, Governance committee

(2) Member, Audit committee

(3) chair, Audit committee

(4) chair, Governance committee

OFFicERS

Kenneth M. dedeluk
President & CEO

daniel R. dexter
Vice President,  

Canada & Marketing

Jim c. Erdle
Vice President,  

USA & Latin America

Allan d. Hiebert
Vice President,  

DRMS Development

John Kalman
Vice President, 

Finance & CFO

Ronald d. Kutney
Vice President,  

Eastern Hemisphere

Long X. Nghiem
Vice President,  

Research & Development

Kathy L. Krug
Corporate Secretary

HEAd OFFicE

150, 3553 – 31 Street NW
calgary, Alberta
canada  T2L 2K7
Telephone: 403.531.1300
Facsimile: 403.282.1823
Email: cmgl@cmgl.ca
Website: www.cmgl.ca

SALES OFFicES

calgary, Alberta, canada
caracas, Venezuela
dubai, UAE
Houston, Texas, USA
London, England

TRANSFER AGENT

computershare Trust company  
of canada

STOcK EXcHANGE LiSTiNG

Toronto Stock Exchange: CMG



computer Modelling Group Ltd.

150, 3553 - 31 Street NW

calgary, Alberta, canada  T2L 2K7

phone: 403-531-1300

website: www.cmgl.ca


